

Education provider	University of Bradford
Name of programme(s)	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science - Life Sciences (Blood
	Science), Part time
	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science - Life Sciences (Cellular Science), Part time
	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science - Life Sciences (Genetics Science), Part time
	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science - Life Sciences (Infection Science), Part time
Date submission received	08 September 2017
Case reference	CAS-12260-Y8J4X0

Contents

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	.2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Outcome from first review	
Section 5: Visitors' recommendation	

Executive Summary

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

The following is a report on the major change process undertaken by the HCPC to ensure that programmes detailed in this report meet our standards of education and training (referred to through this report as 'our standards'). The report details the process itself, the evidence considered, and recommendations made regarding programme approval.

Our standards

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

HCPC panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Carol Ainley	Biomedical scientist
David Houliston	Biomedical scientist
Amal Hussein	HCPC executive

Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science - Life Sciences (Blood
	Science)
Mode of study	Part time
Profession	Biomedical scientist
First intake	01 September 2015
Maximum student	Up to 10
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03484

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science - Life Sciences (Cellular Science)
Mode of study	Part time

Profession	Biomedical scientist
First intake	01 September 2015
Maximum student	Up to 10
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03485

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science - Life Sciences (Genetics
	Science)
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Profession	Biomedical scientist
First intake	01 September 2015
Maximum student	Up to 10
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03486

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science - Life Sciences (Infection Science)
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Profession	Biomedical scientist
First intake	01 September 2015
Maximum student cohort	Up to 10
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03487

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

The education provider has reported that they are introducing a Degree Apprenticeship route through their healthcare science part time programmes.

Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

Section 4: Outcome from first review

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were not satisfied that there was sufficient evidence that our standards continued to be met at this time, and therefore require further evidence as noted below.

Further evidence required

In order to determine whether the standards continue to be met, the visitors require further evidence for the following standards for the reasons noted below.

We expect education providers to review the issues identified in this report, decide on any changes that they wish to make to programme(s), and then provide any further evidence to demonstrate how they meet the standards.

3.2 The programme must be effectively managed.

Reason: From a review of the evidence provided, the visitors noted that the management of the healthcare science part time programmes is well established with clear partnerships arrangements in place. However, the education provider will be introducing a Degree Apprenticeship route through the existing healthcare science part time programmes. From the evidence, the visitors were unclear whether the partnership agreements which underpin the programme for the current students will be different for students accessing the programme via the Degree Apprenticeship. Additionally, the visitors were unable to determine whether the contracts for the degree apprenticeship will be managed by the current programme team alongside the existing programmes or whether the contracts for the degree apprenticeship will be managed separately. As such, the visitors were unable to determine whether the programme continues to be effectively managed with the introduction of the Degree Apprenticeship.

Suggested evidence: Further evidence to demonstrate the management of the programme with the introduction of Degree Apprenticeship. In particular, further clarity on how the contracts for the Degree Apprenticeship will be managed.

6.5 The measurement of student performance must be objective and ensure fitness to practise.

Reason: From a review of the evidence, the visitors noted the education provider will be modifying the part time programme to include the End Point Assessment (EPA) required for Degree Apprenticeships. In order to accommodate the EPA, the education provider will be introducing a project proposal, an hour written 'Readiness for Practice' test as well as project presentation and IBMS registration portfolio verification. In assessing this change, the visitors firstly were unable to determine whether the EPA was specific to apprenticeship student or part-time students. Secondly, the visitors were unclear how the education provider will monitor and measure student performance in relation to the changes to assessment to accommodate the EPA. Finally, the visitors were unable to determine the criteria or guidelines that will be use to assess the project presentation and the 'Readiness for Practice' test. Without this information, the visitors were unclear on how the education provider ensures that the measurement of student performance is objective and ensures fitness to practise.

Suggested evidence: Further evidence on how the education provider ensures that the measurement of student performance is objective and ensure fitness to practise. In particular, whether EPA applies to all student, the criteria used for assessment for the project presentation and the 'Readiness for Practice' test.

6.7 Assessment regulations must clearly specify requirements for student progression and achievement within the programme.

Reason: From a review of the evidence submitted, the visitors noted inaccuracies relating to the length of the programmes. For example, the programme specification states that the programme duration is 5 years. However, the module handbook 'work-based learning and professional practice 3' states that the End Point Assessment (EPA) occurs in 2020. From this information, the visitors were unsure as to what the duration of the programmes are as well as how students' progress and achieve within the length of the programme. Additionally, the visitors were unable to determine from the submission the options available for a failing student, particularly if they fail to successfully complete aspects of the EPA such as, the project proposal, the Readiness for Practice' test, the project presentation or the IBMS registration portfolio verification. With this information, the visitors will be able to determine whether the requirements for student progression and achievement throughout the programme are clearly specified.

Suggested evidence: Further evidence to demonstrate the requirements for student progression and achievement throughout the programme. In particular, clarification on the length of the programmes and the options available to students who fail to complete EPA.

Section 5: Visitors' recommendation

Considering the education provider's response to the request for further evidence set out in section 4, the visitors are satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the standards continue to be met and recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.

This report, including the recommendation of the visitors, will be considered at the 07 December 2017 meeting of the ETC. Following this meeting, this report should be read alongside the ETC's decision notice, which are available on our website.



Education provider	University of Essex
Name of programme(s)	Practice Certificate in Supplementary and Independent
	Prescribing for Physiotherapists, Podiatrists and
	Radiographers, Part time
Date submission	27 September 2017
received	
Case reference	CAS-12938-J4K6C3

Contents

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	.2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Outcome from first review	
Section 5: Visitors' recommendation	

Executive Summary

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

The following is a report on the major change process undertaken by the HCPC to ensure that programmes detailed in this report meet our standards for prescribing (for education providers) (referred to through this report as 'our standards'). The report details the process itself, the evidence considered, and recommendations made regarding programme approval.

Our standards

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed <u>on our website</u>.

How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

HCPC panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Nicholas Haddington	Independent prescriber
Alaster Rutherford	Independent prescriber
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	Practice Certificate in Supplementary and Independent Prescribing for Physiotherapists, Podiatrists and Radiographers
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Entitlement	Independent prescribing
	Supplementary prescribing
First intake	01 March 2018
Maximum student	Up to 25
cohort	
Intakes per year	2
Assessment reference	MC03608

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme meets our standards, following changes to the education provider's prescribing provision reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

Due to changes in legislation, the education provider has highlighted that they want to include therapeutic radiographers as independent prescribers on their non-medical prescribing programme. This has resulted in a new programme record, replacing the previous programme Practice Certificate in Supplementary & Independent Prescribing for Physiotherapists and Podiatrists, Part time (programme reference ESS00429).

Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

Section 4: Outcome from first review

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were not satisfied that there was sufficient evidence that our standards continued to be met at this time, and therefore require further evidence as noted below.

Further evidence required

In order to determine whether the standards continue to be met, the visitors require further evidence for the following standards for the reasons noted below.

We expect education providers to review the issues identified in this report, decide on any changes that they wish to make to programme(s), and then provide any further evidence to demonstrate how they meet the standards.

A.1 The admissions procedures must give both the applicant and education provider the information they require to make an informed choice about whether to take up or make an offer of a place on a programme.

Reason: The visitors reviewed the documentation provided for this major change. From their reading, the visitors were unclear if the education provider is applying for the inclusion of therapeutic radiographers or diagnostic radiographers, or both therapeutic and diagnostic radiographers in the programme. The visitors could not see from the mapping and the documentation where it clearly stated which type of radiographers the evidence referred to. From the documentation provided, the education provider has

mentioned that they do not expect 'many diagnostic radiographers to apply' to the programme. The flier the visitors received as evidence stated that the module would prepare the individual practitioner to practice as both an independent prescriber and a supplementary prescriber working in partnership with independent practitioners. The visitors note that this could be misleading to those applying to the programme as there is no information about what a diagnostic and therapeutic radiographer's prescribing entitlements would be upon successful completion of the programme. The programme is currently approved only for HCPC registrants eligible to train as independent prescribers, and there is therefore no defined route within the programme for HCPC registrants to train only as supplementary prescribers (as would be the case for diagnostic radiographers). Therefore, the visitors require clarification that explicitly sets out whether the provider is applying for approval for inclusion of therapeutic radiographers only, or therapeutic and diagnostic radiographers, and in relation to this, evidence that explicitly describes the relevant criteria for application to this programme, as an independent prescriber where it applies to the therapeutic radiographer, and/or as a supplementary prescriber where it is applicable to the diagnostic radiographer. This will allow the visitors to determine if there is sufficient documentation to allow an applicant to the programme to make an informed choice to take up a place on the programme.

Suggested evidence: Revised documentation that clearly states the HCPC registrants are seeking approval for inclusion on the programme, and demonstrates clearly the relevant prescribing route for therapeutic radiographers and diagnostic radiographers.

C.9 When there is interprofessional learning the profession-specific skills and knowledge of each professional group must be adequately identified and addressed.

Reason: From their reading of the documentation provided, the visitors were unclear how the education providers statement in the mapping document that the "OSCE will be specific to each students' area of practice" would be implemented. The visitors were unclear from this statement and the evidence provided as to how the education provider would validate that the OSCE for a therapeutic or diagnostic radiographer was appropriate as there appears to be no professional input from therapeutic or diagnostic radiographers.

Suggested evidence: Evidence that clearly identifies how the OSCEs for the additional professional group will be validated and assessed to ensure that the profession-specific skills are addressed.

D.9 There must be regular and effective collaboration between the education provider and the practice placement providers.

Reason: On reading the evidence provided by the education provider regarding the letter sent to the designated medical practitioner (DMP), the visitors were unclear how the DMPs would be made aware of the addition of therapeutic or diagnostic radiographers. The DMP "Fact sheet" makes no reference to radiographers

Suggested evidence: Evidence that demonstrates that the education provider ensures that the DMPs receive the correct information on their role with the additional professional group[s][eligible to undertake this programme and the qualification received [if this includes diagnostic radiographers]

E.10 Assessment regulations must clearly specify requirements for the appointment of at least one external examiner who must be appropriately experienced and qualified and, unless other arrangements are agreed, be from a relevant part of the HCPC Register

Reason: Following the reading of the mapping document, the visitors were unclear if there had been a change in the external examiner for the programme. The mapping document seemed to indicate a change had been made to the appointment of the external examiner. However, they could not be sure, if this change had been made in line with the appointment of external examiners document provided, or if this policy had changed too. Therefore, the visitors are seeking clarification over the appointment of the external examiner, if a change has been made to ensure this standard is met.

Suggested evidence: Evidence that clarifies if there has been a change to how an external examiner is appointed or if there has been a change to the external examiner that might not meet the appointment policy.

Section 5: Visitors' recommendation

Considering the education provider's response to the request for further evidence set out in section 4, the visitors are satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the standards continue to be met and recommend that the programme(s) are approved.

This report, including the recommendation of the visitors, will be considered at the 07 December 2017 meeting of the ETC. Following this meeting, this report should be read alongside the ETC's decision notice, which are available on our website.



Education provider	University of Hertfordshire	
Name of programme(s)	BSc (Hons) Paramedic Science, University of	
	Hertfordshire, Full time	
Date submission	09 October 2017	
received		
Case reference	CAS-12179-X7L7Z2	

Contents

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	3

Executive Summary

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

The following is a report on the major change process undertaken by the HCPC to ensure that programmes detailed in this report meet our standards of education and training (referred to through this report as 'our standards'). The report details the process itself, the evidence considered, and recommendations made regarding programme approval.

Our standards

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed <u>on our website</u>.

How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

HCPC panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Glyn Harding	Paramedic
Simon Dykes	Paramedic
Niall Gooch	HCPC executive

Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Paramedic Science
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Paramedic
First intake	01 September 2004
Maximum learner	Up to 30
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03398

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process. The education provider informed the HCPC that they had amended entrance requirements in light of the new UCAS tariff system. There were also changes to some individual modules, in both content and title, and adjustments to the credit weighting of some Level 5 modules.

Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.

This report, including the recommendation of the visitors, will be considered at the 23 November 2017 meeting of the ETC. Following this meeting, this report should be read alongside the ETC's decision notice, which are available on our website.



Education provider	The University of Northampton
Name of programme(s)	BA (Hons) in Social Work, Full time
Date submission	24 October 2017
received	
Case reference	CAS-12897-R6J9W7

Contents

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4. Visitors' recommendation	

Executive Summary

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

The following is a report on the major change process undertaken by the HCPC to ensure that programmes detailed in this report meet our standards of education and training (referred to through this report as 'our standards'). The report details the process itself, the evidence considered, and recommendations made regarding programme approval.

Our standards

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

HCPC panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Patricia Higham	Social worker
Amal Hussein	HCPC executive

Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	BA (Hons) in Social Work
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 July 2004
Maximum learner	Up to 25
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03500

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

The education provider reported a change in programme leader.

Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.

This report, including the recommendation of the visitors, will be considered at the 07 December 2017 meeting of the ETC. Following this meeting, this report should be read alongside the ETC's decision notice, which are available on our website.